

### INTRODUCTORY AND SECURE

# TENANCY AGREEMENT

2006 FDITION

### **CONTENTS**

1.	INTRODUCTION	03
2.	CUSTOMER SERVICE AND COMMUNICATION	06
3.	RENT	08
4.	RESIDENTIAL USE	09
5.	ANTISOCIAL BEHAVIOUR	10
6.	DOMESTIC VIOLENCE	11
7.	PETS	11
8.	REPAIRS TO AND MAINTENANCE OF YOUR HOME	12
9.	COMMUNAL AREAS	13
10.	IMPROVEMENTS AND ALTERATIONS	14
11.	ARRANGEMENTS FOR INSPECTION AND CARRYING OUT WORKS	15
12.	ENFORCING THIS AGREEMENT	17
13.	PASSING YOUR TENANCY ON	19
14.	ENDING THE TENANCY	21
15.	OCCUPATION AFTER YOUR TENANCY HAS ENDED	25
16.	HANDING YOUR HOME BACK TO US	26

#### 1. INTRODUCTION

#### (A) SCOPE OF THIS AGREEMENT

- 1.1 This agreement sets out the rights and obligations of the council and its tenants. It is the legal contract between us. It covers the following kinds of tenancy.
- 1.2 Introductory tenancy Unless you already have a secure tenancy (or an assured tenancy with a registered social landlord that is not an assured shorthold tenancy), you begin your tenancy as an introductory tenant. Introductory tenancies are for a trial period. The trial period normally lasts one year, but may be extended. During the trial period, you have less security and fewer rights. For example:
  - your home is at much higher risk of repossession if you do not keep to this agreement;
  - you cannot buy your home; and
  - you cannot exchange homes with other tenants.
- 1.3 Secure tenancy If the trial period is successfully completed, you automatically become a secure tenant. If you already have a secure tenancy (or an assured tenancy with a registered social landlord that is not an assured shorthold tenancy), you are a secure tenant from the beginning of your new tenancy.
- 1.4 Demoted tenancy A secure tenancy may be ended by a court order for some kinds of antisocial behaviour and replaced with a demoted tenancy. A demoted tenancy has more limited rights, like an introductory tenancy. This is explained in paragraphs 12.4 - 12.5.
- 1.5 Most of this agreement applies to all kinds of tenancy. Where part of it only applies to some, we say so in the paragraph concerned.

#### (B) UNDERSTANDING THIS AGREEMENT

- 1.6 Please take time to read all of this agreement. We acknowledge that much of it will only apply if particular situations arise. Where one part of the agreement needs to be read with another part, we have tried to show that by cross-referencing the other part or paragraph numbers. But the agreement should be read as a whole in order to understand its full effect.
- 1.7 From time to time changes to the law affect tenancy agreements of this kind. This agreement is therefore subject to any such changes that there may be. Paragraph 2.3 explains how we tell you about developments or information that affect your tenancy.

#### 1.8 Definitions

- we means Norwich City Council's housing service and the staff responsible for its Housing work.
- you means the tenant (or joint tenants) named in the original tenancy sign-up sheet or to whom the tenancy is passed on under part 13.
- your home means the house or flat, including any garden or other land, that is let exclusively to you. Paragraph 10.4 has further information about boundaries and the extent of gardens.
- communal areas means land around your home that is owned by us for housing purposes and which is not exclusively let to you or your neighbours. It therefore includes, for example, stairways and landings in blocks of flats and communal parking and access areas.
- neighbourhood means your home and all the area nearby (whether or not it is part of the communal areas).
- rent means the basic rent and other charges as notified by us to you at the beginning of your tenancy and whenever it changes.

#### (C) HOW LONG DOES THE TENANCY LAST?

1.9 The tenancy carries on indefinitely, rather than for a fixed time. In legal terms, it is a weekly tenancy. It therefore continues running week-by-week (from first thing Monday to midnight Sunday), beginning with the date shown on the original tenancy sign-up sheet, until it ends as explained in part 14.

### (D) RESPONSIBILITY BETWEEN JOINT TENANTS AND RESPONSIBILITY FOR OTHER OCCUPANTS

- 1.10 Joint tenancies are almost always between two people. In very exceptional cases, they may be between three or four people. References in this agreement to joint tenants assume that there are only two. If there are more than two, references to both joint tenants should be read as references to all joint tenants.
- 1.11 Joint tenants are both fully entitled to the rights and fully responsible for the obligations set out in this agreement. This applies even if one of the joint tenants is not in occupation.
- 1.12 You are responsible for other members of your household and visitors to your home. That means that where this agreement prohibits you from doing something, it applies to them too.

### 2. CUSTOMER SERVICE AND COMMUNICATION

- 2.1 You can contact us by telephone, email, post, or at our offices. Contact details and opening hours may change from time to time. We will give you current details when your tenancy begins and tell you if and when they change. Please note:
  - we have a 24-hour emergency telephone service out of office hours;
  - private meeting facilities are available for confidential discussions; and
  - home visits can be arranged.
- 2.2 We value your views and consult all our tenants as best we can about the service we provide. Please contact us if you want information about joining or forming a tenant association.
- 2.3 We write to all our tenants from time to time, so that you are kept up to date with developments or information that affect your tenancy. We also publicise such information at our offices.
- 2.4 We sometimes operate incentive schemes for tenants to encourage and reward best tenancy practice. We will publish such schemes when they apply.
- 2.5 You may inspect the information we hold about you. Please ask us for details.
- 2.6 If you think your neighbours are not keeping to this agreement so as to spoil the enjoyment of your home, please contact us. We will investigate and do our best to resolve the problem. Part 12 explains how we enforce the agreement.

2.7 If you are not satisfied with the service we provide and you cannot resolve the problem with the neighbourhood housing officer who normally deals with you, you can use our complaints procedure. If a problem cannot be resolved under our own complaints procedure, you can refer the matter to the Local Government Ombudsman. Details of our complaints procedure and the Ombudsman scheme are available on request.

#### GIVING FORMAL NOTICE

- 2.8 When we need to give formal notice to you about your tenancy we must do so in writing and by handing it to you in person, or posting it or delivering it by hand to your home. Remember that your home, in this context, is your tenancy address, not somewhere else that you might happen to be living at the time (see paragraph 1.8).
- 2.9 When you need to give formal notice to us about your tenancy you must do so in writing and by handing it to one of our housing staff in person, or posting it or delivering it by hand to Norwich City Council, City Hall, Norwich, NR2 1NH or any other office used by us at the time for our housing service.
- 2.10 In the case of joint tenancies, notices are effective if given by us to one joint tenant only, or if given by one joint tenant only to us.
- 2.11 This paragraph applies if you die during your tenancy, you are the only tenant, and no family members are allowed to have the tenancy passed on to them (see paragraphs 13.3 13.4). In that situation, any notice that we have to give about the tenancy is effective if addressed to your personal representatives and posted or delivered by us in accordance with paragraph 2.8.

#### 3. RENT

- 3.1 We will write to you at least four weeks before the beginning of each financial year (the first Monday in April) to tell you about your rent for that year.
- 3.2 Remember that your rent includes other charges as well as the basic rent (see paragraph 1.8). Some of those other charges may only be finalised shortly before the new financial year. At that stage we will notify you of the finalised figures and the weeks for which the rent is due. It is due each week except for the last two weeks of December (see paragraph 3.8).
- 3.3 When your tenancy begins we will notify you of the rent for the current year and the weeks for which it is due.
- 3.4 If we need to review your rent during a financial year we will give you four weeks notice of any changes to it.
- 3.5 You must pay your rent promptly. If you don't keep up with your payments your home is at risk of repossession.
- 3.6 We expect you to pay your rent by regular instalments using a direct debit. We will give you the details to set up a direct debit when your tenancy begins. If you do not have a direct debit in operation, it is your responsibility to make sure that your rent is paid for each week that it is due.
- 3.7 You may be entitled to housing benefit for some of your rent. We can give you information about this. It is your responsibility to apply for benefit and supply all the information needed for that application to be processed. You continue to have an obligation to pay your rent, whatever the situation is with your benefit application.

- 3.8 Rent is not due for the last two weeks of December. This makes no difference to the calculation of the total amount due over a full year. Nor does it affect the way we collect direct debit instalments over a full year. But because rent is not due for those two weeks, no housing benefit is available for them. And when your tenancy ends, there is no adjustment to your rent account to reflect the two rent-free weeks.
- 3.9 The general rule is that you cannot begin a new tenancy with us if you owe us money from another tenancy (for example, for rent arrears, damage to property or legal costs in connection with the tenancy). But there are exceptions to this rule, particularly if you have paid your current rent plus an affordable instalment off the debt consistently over a period of time. If that is the case, you must continue to pay those instalments, as well as paying your current rent.

#### 4. RESIDENTIAL USE

- **4.1** You must occupy your home for residential purposes.
- 4.2 You must not use your home for business purposes as well, unless you get our written permission to do so. We will not give permission if the intended use is against other regulations, for example planning laws, or might cause a problem for your neighbours.
- 4.3 If you stop occupying your home (or, in the case of a joint tenancy, you both do), you are at risk of losing your tenancy. Paragraph 14.7 explains how we may end the tenancy in these circumstances. If you expect to be absent for a temporary period of more than six weeks, please contact us to discuss the situation.
- **4.4** You may have a lodger living with you in your home.
- 4.5 If you are a secure tenant only you may sub-let part of your home, but only if you get our written permission to do so.

#### 5. ANTISOCIAL BEHAVIOUR

- 5.1 You must not behave in the neighbourhood in a way that is (or is likely to be) a nuisance or annoyance to other people. It is not possible to list everything that is a nuisance or annoyance. These are examples of some of the most common kinds:
  - loud music and other unreasonable noise;
  - noisy DIY for prolonged periods or late at night;
  - door slamming;
  - rowdy behaviour, including excessive visitors, shouting and swearing at people;
  - keeping animals in an irresponsible way (or at all in some flats) against part 7;
  - keeping your home in poor condition against paragraphs 8.9 8.10; and
  - misusing the communal areas against paragraphs 9.2 9.3.
- 5.2 You must not harass, intimidate or abuse:
  - anybody in the neighbourhood;
  - anybody at our offices; or
  - anybody that you know to be connected with the neighbourhood or management of your tenancy (for example, your neighbours, their visitors or our staff), wherever they are.

Harassment includes offensive behaviour directed at people because of their race, colour, sex, sexual orientation or religion. It also includes indirect threats towards people and making malicious allegations against people.

- 5.3 You must not have in your home any unlawful drugs or equipment for the misuse of drugs.
- 5.4 You must not use your home for immoral or illegal purposes or commit arrestable offences in the neighbourhood.

5.5 Remember you are responsible for other members of your household and visitors to your home (see paragraph 1.12). You must not, therefore, allow them to behave in an antisocial manner. This includes children.

#### 6. DOMESTIC VIOLENCE

- 6.1 You must not be violent to, harass, intimidate or abuse other members of your household so that they leave your home.
- 6.2 In the case of such violence etc perpetrated by one joint tenant against the other, we may enforce this agreement to prevent the perpetrator remaining in sole occupation of the home.
- 6.3 Paragraph 14.5 explains how we will deal with the situation if one joint tenant ends the tenancy, leaving another joint tenant in occupation.

#### 7. PETS

- 7.1 You must not keep any animals (except confined small pets like budgerigars and goldfish) if you live in:
  - the following tower blocks Ashbourne, Aylmer, Burleigh, Compass, Markham, Normandie, Seaman or Winchester Towers; or
  - the following sheltered housing flats Britannia Court, Douro House, Lakenfields, St James' House, Silkfields, Singer Court or Stone Road.
- 7.2 Otherwise you may keep animals, but you must do so responsibly. You must be able to care for them and control them without causing a problem for your neighbours or interfering with the amenities in the communal areas. This means, for example, not:
  - keeping more animals than is reasonable for the size and type of your home;
  - allowing them to foul the neighbourhood; or
  - allowing them persistently to bark etc.

## 8. REPAIRS TO AND MAINTENANCE OF YOUR HOME

- **8.1** We are responsible for keeping in repair:
  - the structure and exterior of your home (including drains, gutters and external pipes).

We are also responsible for keeping in repair and proper working order the installations for:

- the supply of water, gas and electricity;
- sanitation (for example basins, sinks, baths and toilets); and
- heating (both space and water heating).
- **8.2** We must carry out those repairs provided:
  - the disrepair has not been caused by you;
  - we know about the disrepair; and
  - we have your co-operation over access to your home for our staff and contractors.
- 8.3 You must treat the structure and exterior of your home and the installations with respect and report any defects to us as soon as you become aware of them. We may charge you the cost of carrying out works that have become necessary because you have failed to do so.
- 8.4 Remember you are responsible for other members of your household and visitors to your home (see paragraph 1.12). You must not therefore allow them to damage your home.
- 8.5 You must ventilate your home and keep it at a reasonable temperature so as to minimise condensation.
- **8.6** You must keep the parts of your home for which we are not responsible to a reasonable standard, carrying out minor repairs and maintenance as necessary.

- 8.7 You must maintain your smoke detectors so that they work properly.
- 8.8 You must not store anything in your home that is a safety risk. This includes the storage of petrol and other inflammable or toxic materials. In exceptional cases, it may include the storage of excessive paper, wood, building material or other such material.
- 8.9 You must maintain your home to a standard of hygiene so as not to damage the fabric of the building, cause a nuisance or annoyance to your neighbours, or create a hazard for our staff or contractors.
- **8.10** Remember that your home includes any garden area (see paragraph **1.8**). This means that it, too, must be maintained to a standard so as not to be a problem for your neighbours or us.
- **8.11** We recommend that you take out insurance for your personal property (in other words your furniture, clothes and other belongings) and other potential losses for which we are not responsible. Details of insurance arrangements that we can offer are available on request.

#### 9. COMMUNAL AREAS

- 9.1 We will maintain the communal areas to a reasonable standard for the safety and well-being of you and your neighbours.
- 9.2 You must not do anything that is detrimental to other people's enjoyment of the communal areas. It is not possible to list all such activities, but common examples are:
  - fly tipping;
  - leaving things there that obstruct access or are otherwise a hazard or danger;
  - carrying out car repairs (apart from occasional routine maintenance of your own vehicle); and
  - graffiti.
- 9.3 If the communal areas include parking facilities you may use them for your private vehicles, provided that you do so responsibly and with consideration for your neighbours. Any cars that you park there must be roadworthy and display current road tax and parking permits if applicable.

#### 10. IMPROVEMENTS AND ALTERATIONS

#### (A) BY US

10.1 From time to time, we carry out improvements for the long-term benefit of our properties. We will discuss this with you as and when such a situation arises. We may insist that improvements are carried out, for example, when they are part of a phased programme of works for the overall benefit of the neighbourhood. You must allow us to do works where we insist.

#### (B) BY YOU

- 10.2 You must get our written permission before you carry out any improvements or alterations to your home. This applies if you plan to change, for example, standard fittings or floor surfaces, as well as to more major works. We will consider safety, the impact on neighbours and future maintenance. You may need other permission too, for example planning or building regulation consents. We will discuss this with you at the time.
- 10.3 Remember that your home includes any garden area (see paragraph1.8). You must therefore get our written permission before you cut down trees or carry out other major landscaping or garden works.
- 10.4 Before making any changes to the boundaries of your home (particularly the garden area see paragraph 1.8) you must get our written permission. Sometimes the precise boundaries of garden areas are not clear. It may be necessary for us to check our records for the housing estate as a whole in order to clarify where the boundary lies and who is responsible for it.
- 10.5 You may be entitled to compensation at the end of your tenancy for improvements you have carried out (see paragraph 16.4).

### 11. ARRANGEMENTS FOR INSPECTION AND CARRYING OUT WORKS

- 11.1 You must allow us and our contractors access to your home to:
  - inspect it to check the condition and any works needed; and
  - carry out works of repair, maintenance or improvement to your home.
- 11.2 You must allow us, and contractors authorised by us, access to your home to carry out works to other people's homes or for the benefit of the neighbourhood that cannot reasonably be carried out otherwise.
- 11.3 We must give you at least 24 hours written notice of any access appointment unless it is an emergency, in which case we may attend without notice.
- 11.4 We, or our contractors, may enter your home by any means necessary, including a forced entry, if either:
  - it is an emergency; or
  - we have been unable to make contact with you despite all reasonable efforts (including, where we know of them, contact through your next of kin and any social or other support worker), and have reason to believe either that you are not in occupation of your home or that your well-being is at risk.
- 11.5 The timetable for carrying out repairs depends on all the circumstances. The more it affects the day-to-day enjoyment of your home, the sooner we will do it. On the other hand, external repairs will often await the next planned programme of maintenance in the neighbourhood. We will discuss this with you at the time.

- **11.6** Before starting major works, we will discuss with you the timetable for the works and how to minimise inconvenience.
- 11.7 If the works mean that we need vacant access to your home we will tell you. You must then leave your home for the period concerned. In such cases we will discuss with you arrangements for alternative temporary accommodation.
- 11.8 We must remove all associated rubbish, building materials and equipment from your home on completion of works carried out by us.
- 11.9 Under the right to repair scheme, if we fail to carry out certain works on time, you can ask us to employ an alternative contractor to do so. Details are available on request.
- 11.10 Paragraph 14.16 explains your obligations to give access to your home in the period leading up to the end of the tenancy.

#### 12. ENFORCING THIS AGREEMENT

- 12.1 As explained in paragraph 1.1, this agreement is a contract between us. We both have rights and obligations. The general rule is that either of us can enforce the agreement against the other in the County Court by civil action (as opposed to criminal action, which requires a higher standard of proof).
- 12.2 This part of the agreement explains how we will enforce it against you if necessary. If you believe that you have the right to take action against us and it is necessary to do so, we recommend that you contact a solicitor for advice.
- 12.3 Unless it is urgent that we take immediate legal action against you, we will contact you if we have cause for complaint. That way we hope to sort it out before it becomes a major problem requiring legal action.
- **12.4** But we will not tolerate persistent or serious breaches of this agreement. If necessary, we will therefore apply to the court for an order against you. For example, the court may:
  - end your tenancy, leading to your eviction; or
  - issue an injunction or similar order against you to stop breaches of the agreement.

For some kinds of antisocial behaviour by secure tenants the court may also, or instead:

- suspend your right to buy for a specified period of time; or
- make a demotion order against you (as explained in the next paragraph).

- 12.5 Before applying to the court for a demotion order, we must give you a preliminary notice. That notice will explain the process. If the court makes a demotion order, your secure tenancy ends and is replaced with a demoted tenancy. The effect is that you begin a new trial period. During that period, you have less security and fewer rights. For example:
  - your home is at much higher risk of repossession if you do not keep to this agreement;
  - you cannot buy your home; and
  - you cannot exchange homes with other tenants (and your right to pass your tenancy on otherwise is restricted).

This agreement still applies to the demoted tenancy.

12.6 If we apply to the court for an order against you, we will include a claim that you must pay our legal costs.

#### 13. PASSING YOUR TENANCY ON

13.1 The general rule is that you cannot pass your tenancy on to other people. When you no longer need your home, we must re-let it in accordance with our allocation policy. What follows in this part of the agreement are the exceptions to this general rule.

#### **DEATH**

- **13.2** If you die during your tenancy and you are a joint tenant, the tenancy continues for the remaining tenant.
- 13.3 If you die during your tenancy, you are the only tenant, and:
  - specified members of your family are in occupation of your home as their main residence;
  - they have lived with you for the required period of time; and
  - you were neither a joint tenant originally nor somebody to whom a tenancy had been passed on already

then the tenancy passes to one of those family members.

13.4 A tenancy may therefore be passed on to a family member, but only once. The people who are specified as family members and the required period of residence are set out in legislation. Please ask us if you want more information about what will happen to your tenancy on your death. Otherwise we will discuss the situation with any members of your family who are in occupation of your home at the time of your death.

#### **EXCHANGING HOMES WITH OTHER TENANTS**

- 13.5 If you are a secure tenant only you may exchange homes, if you get our written permission to do so, with another secure tenant (or assured tenant of certain social landlords), if they, too, have got written permission from their landlord.
- 13.6 We can only refuse permission if we do so on grounds specified by legislation. If we want to rely on one of those grounds, we must say which one and why.

#### RELATIONSHIP BREAKDOWN

- 13.7 Tenancies may be passed on by a court order in divorce or similar proceedings, subject to any objection we have. The court order may be to pass the tenancy from joint tenants to one of them or to somebody who is not already a tenant.
- 13.8 If you are in this situation, you or your solicitors should check with us as soon as possible whether we might have an objection. We will only object if the kind of property is unsuitable for the prospective new tenant's household (in accordance with our allocation policy) or there are (or may be) tenancy management problems.

#### QUALIFYING SUCCESSOR

13.9 If you are a secure or introductory tenant – during your lifetime, you may pass your tenancy on to somebody who would be entitled to it on your death (see paragraphs 13.3 - 13.4 above), but only if you get our written permission to do so.

#### 14. ENDING THE TENANCY

- (A) BY YOU NOTICE TO QUIT
- 14.1 If you want to end your tenancy, you must give us formal notice (see paragraph 2.9). We can give you the correct form to use. It does not end the tenancy immediately. The tenancy will only end after four clear weeks (in other words, at the end of the four week period starting on the Monday after we receive your notice).
- 14.2 Remember that in the case of joint tenancies, notices to us are effective if given by one joint tenant only (see paragraph 2.10).
- 14.3 Once you have given us notice, you can't change your mind. When the notice takes effect, everybody who lives at your home must leave. Nobody has an automatic right to be re-housed by us.
- 14.4 You should therefore think carefully before ending the tenancy in this way, particularly if you are a joint tenant or there are other members of your household. If your intention to end the tenancy is connected with a relationship breakdown, you should take advice about it. If you do not already have a solicitor advising you on the relationship breakdown, we recommend you go and see one.
- 14.5 If one joint tenant ends the tenancy in this way and the other tenant remains in occupation, we will only offer a new sole tenancy if the kind of property is suitable for the remaining occupant's household (in accordance with our allocation policy) and there are no tenancy management problems.

#### (B) BY US - NOTICE TO QUIT

- 14.6 The general rule is that if we want to end your tenancy we must get a court order. But in the following situations we can do so by giving you four weeks notice to guit.
- **14.7 Non-occupation or sub-letting** We can end your tenancy by giving you four weeks notice to quit if you:
  - stop occupying your home as your only or principal home (or, in the case of a joint tenancy, if you both do); or
  - sub-let or part with legal possession of your home (except in the limited way allowed and explained in paragraph 4.5).
- 14.8 Death This paragraph applies if you die during your tenancy, you are the only tenant, and no family members are allowed to have the tenancy passed on to them (as explained in paragraphs 13.3 13.4). We can end the tenancy by giving four weeks notice to quit. Paragraph 2.11 explains the formalities of how we can do so. We will only observe these formalities when there is a doubt about our right to take your home back and re-let it. If there is no doubt, we will take possession of your home. This is on the basis that the tenancy has ended immediately in the way explained in paragraphs 14.13 14.15.

#### (c) BY US - COURT ORDER

- 14.9 Except where paragraphs 14.6 14.8 apply, we can only end your tenancy by getting a court order.
- 14.10 Before we apply to the court for an order ending your tenancy we must give you a preliminary notice (sometimes called a notice of seeking possession or a notice of proceedings for possession). The notice will explain why we want to end your tenancy and what rights you have.
- 14.11 We may then apply to the court for an order ending your tenancy.
  - If you are an introductory or demoted tenant, you are at much higher risk of eviction. The court must make an order ending your tenancy if the judge is satisfied that we have followed the right procedure. In other words, the judge has no discretion to consider the overall merits of the case.
  - If you are a secure tenant, you have more rights when the case comes to court. The judge must not only be satisfied that we have followed the right procedure, but also that we have proved one of the grounds for taking action set out in legislation. In most cases the judge must also consider the overall merits and be satisfied that it is reasonable to make an order. Even if an order is made ending your tenancy, in some cases the judge may suspend eviction. This will normally be on condition, for example, that you make specified payments or keep to this agreement in the future.
- 14.12 Paragraphs 12.4 12.5 explain how a demotion order can end a secure tenancy. But in that case it is replaced with a demoted tenancy and this agreement still applies.

#### (D) BY AGREEMENT - SURRENDER

- 14.13 If everybody agrees, your tenancy can end immediately. In the case of a joint tenancy, both tenants must agree, as well as us.
- 14.14 If so, we can give you the correct form for signature by you (or in the case of joint tenants, both of you).
- 14.15 In some cases, an agreement to end the tenancy in this way can be implied. This often arises where it is clear that you have abandoned your home (because you have, for example, moved out, stopped paying the rent or returned the keys to us).

#### (E) ACCESS WHEN YOUR TENANCY IS DUE TO END

14.16 Once a date has been set for your tenancy to end (following service of a notice to quit or a court order), we need to ensure that we can re-let your home as soon as possible. You must therefore allow us access to your home at that stage, both to check what works are needed before we re-let it, and to show it to prospective new tenants

### 15. OCCUPATION AFTER YOUR TENANCY HAS ENDED

- 15.1 The general rule is that everybody must leave your home when your tenancy ends. If you or other members of your household fail to do so, we can evict you by taking court action and getting bailiffs to execute a possession warrant.
- 15.2 Although that is the general rule, there are situations where people remain in occupation for some time after the tenancy has ended. This is particularly so in the case of court orders ending secure tenancies (see paragraph 14.11). As explained there, the judge may suspend eviction in some circumstances. If ex tenants remain in occupation of their home in this situation they are sometimes called tolerated trespassers.
- 15.3 Technically, people remaining in occupation after a tenancy has ended do not pay rent. But we are entitled to payment of the equivalent amount. Those payments are sometimes called charges for use and occupation or mesne profits. People who have to make those payments can apply for housing benefit just as they would if they had to pay rent.
- **15.4** Once your tenancy has ended you lose your rights under this agreement. For example:
  - we are no longer obliged to carry out repairs (although we may do so at our own discretion in order to keep our properties in good condition);
  - as you no longer have a tenancy, you cannot pass it on to other people in any of the ways described in part 13; and
  - even if you were a secure tenant immediately before your tenancy ended, you cannot buy your home or exchange homes with other tenants

15.5 After your tenancy has ended, we may send you letters or similar circulars sent to other council properties as well. In so far as those letters or circulars suggest that the person getting them is a tenant, you should disregard that. In other words, such letters and circulars should not be taken to imply that your particular tenancy has been reinstated.

## 16. HANDING YOUR HOME BACK TO US

**16.1** The general rule is that you must hand your home back to us immediately your tenancy ends. Part **15** explains the exceptions to this. Remember that your home includes any garden area (see paragraph **1.8**).

#### **16.2** You must:

- return your keys to us;
- give us vacant possession by not allowing anybody else to remain in occupation of your home;
- leave your home in good condition; and
- leave your home clear of rubbish and all your personal property (see paragraph 16.5).
- 16.3 If you don't, we will re-charge you our cost of putting things right. The amount of the re-charge could just be the cost of changing the locks. But if your home is in poor condition or somebody is left in occupation, the re-charge will be a lot more. In these cases, the re-charge may cover the equivalent of the rent for the delay in being able to re-let your home and the costs of court action.
- **16.4** You may be entitled to compensation for improvements that you have carried out under paragraph **10.2**. We can give you details of qualifying improvements and a claim form. There are time limits for claiming.

- **16.5** We are entitled to throw away any personal property (in other words your furniture, clothes and other belongings) left in your home. We will:
  - throw away immediately any personal property that is perishable, not practical for us to store or of no obvious value;
  - store any other personal property for up to one month; and
  - if we have a forwarding address for you, write to you confirming that you may collect the personal property from storage during that month, provided you pay storage costs.

Remember that the main obligation is on you not to leave any personal property behind. We are not responsible for checking the value of it or keeping it safe. Nothing will be kept for more than a month.

# INTRODUCTORY AND SECURE TENANCY AGREEMENT 2006 EDITION TENANCY SIGN-UP

COUNCIL COPY

Name of tenant(s) USE BLOCK CA	APITALS			
List of occupants (other than tena	nts)			
Property address				
Property info Type of property (eg. house, flat)  No. of bed spa		ces	Date tenancy begins	
Tenancy type The general rule is that the tenancy to one year. If the trial period is success of the tenants already has a secure to not an assured shorthold tenancy, the when their tenancies have become so the tenancy officer declaration.  I have explained the tenancy agreem.	fully completed the enancy, or an assu e tenancy is a sect ecure.	e tenancy then be red tenancy with ure tenancy from	ecomes a secure tenancy. But if one a registered social landlord that is the beginning. Tenants are notified	
Signature (council officer)	_	nt officer name		
Tenant declaration I/we acknowledge receipt of our cop Tenancy Agreement.	y of this Tenancy /	Agreement, and th	nat I/we must keep to the	
Signature (tenant one)	Sig	gnature (tenant two)		
Print name Pri		nt name		
Date		1	NORWICH City Council	

# INTRODUCTORY AND SECURE TENANCY AGREEMENT 2006 EDITION TENANCY SIGN-UP

TENANT COPY

Name of tenant(s) USE BLOCK CA	APITALS			
List of occupants (other than tena	nts)			
Property address				
Property info Type of property (eg. house, flat)  No. of bed spa		ces	Date tenancy begins	
Tenancy type The general rule is that the tenancy to one year. If the trial period is success of the tenants already has a secure to not an assured shorthold tenancy, the when their tenancies have become so the tenancy officer declaration.  I have explained the tenancy agreem.	fully completed the enancy, or an assu e tenancy is a sect ecure.	e tenancy then be tred tenancy with ure tenancy from	ecomes a secure tenancy. But if one a registered social landlord that is the beginning. Tenants are notified	
Signature (council officer)	_	nt officer name		
<b>Tenant declaration</b> I/we acknowledge receipt of our cop Tenancy Agreement.	y of this Tenancy /	Agreement, and th	nat I/we must keep to the	
Signature (tenant one)	Sig	gnature (tenant two)		
Print name	Pri	nt name		
Date		1	NORWICH City Council	





IF YOU REQUIRE THIS BOOKLET IN ANOTHER FORMAT OR LANGUAGE PLEASE CONTACT NORWICH CITY COUNCIL ON 0844 980 3333 OR EMAIL TST@NORWICH.GOV.UK

PUBLISHED BY NORWICH CITY COUNCIL AUGUST 2008 NORWICH CITY COUNCIL CITY HALL · NORWICH · NR2 1NH WWW.NORWICH.GOV.UK